# DRAFT VILLAGE OF PINCKNEY PLANNING COMMISSION MONDAY, JUNE 3, 2024

### **CALL TO ORDER:**

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Oliver at 7:13 p.m.

Present: Savanna Gee

Deborah Grischke Joseph Hartman Ted Kinczkowski Alex Smith Christine Oliver Trisha Wagner

Also Present: Julie Durkin, Zoning Administrator & Planner Lucie Fortin (via Teams)

# **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:**

Chairperson Oliver led those present in the pledge of allegiance.

## **APPROVAL OF AGENDA:**

Motion by Wagner, supported by Gee

To approve the agenda as presented

VOTE: Ayes: 7 Nays: 0 Absent: 0 MOTION CARRIED

### **APPROVAL OF MINUTES:**

Motion by Hartman, supported by Wagner

To approve the minutes of the May 6, 2024 regular meeting as presented

VOTE: Ayes: 7 Nays: 0 Absent: 0 MOTION CARRIED

### **REPORTS:**

# **PUBLIC FORUM:**

Chairperson Oliver opened public forum at 7:03 p.m.

Rick Beaudin of 9676 Zukey Drive commented on the upcoming consideration of the special land use that will be on the parcel with the marihuana facility. He would encourage the village to require bonds to make sure that it gets finished so it does not end up with what has happened at the old school. He discussed the trends in the marihuana industry. He discussed the road conditions and traffic patterns for the additional uses.

Mr. Beaudin indicated that he is also concerned about what has been labeled as "Signgate 2024" dealing with two signs. Both of these businesses support the community. He further discussed the use of these signs and lack of enforcement in years past. He stated that he understands that other communities' ordinances have been provided. This is Pinckney

and we can do what we want to do. We don't want every place in town to have one, but there should be a way to "grandfather" these two businesses.

Mr. Beaudin also discussed the property where the community garden is located. As a real estate agent, he cannot believe that it has not been put on the market. It should be listed and marketed. Let's get something built there better than gardens that are not needed in a downtown area.

Hearing no further public comment, public forum was closed at 7:09 p.m.

### **OLD BUSINESS:**

 Request for Extension – Final Site Plan Review SPR-001-2022 Grant's Place – 551 E. Hamburg

ZA Durkin stated that we have received a request from Chris Bonk for an extension of his site plan for Grant's Place. He has indicated that with the challenges associated with The Means Project, he has had to form a new non-profit organization. The Planning Commission can grant up to a year extension.

Motion by Hartman, supported by Gee

To grant a one-year extension of the site plan for Grant's Place located at 551 E. Hamburg

ROLL CALL VOTE: Gee – Yes

Grischke - Yes Hartman - Yes Kinczkowski - No Smith - Yes Wagner - Yes Oliver – Yes

**MOTION CARRIED** 

# **NEW BUSINESS:**

1. Special Land Use Application – 2024-001-SLU

Applicant: Pinckney Development (Essence-Pinckney)

Location: 1268 E. M-36 (4714-23-400-008)

Request: Schedule Public Hearing – Gas Station & Fast Food Restaurant

Motion by Kinczkowski, supported by Grischke

To schedule a public hearing for July 1, 2024 for consideration of the Special Land Use Request for a gas station and fast food restaurant at 1268 E. M-36

VOTE: Ayes: 7 Nays: 0 Absent: 0 MOTION CARRIED

Request for Land Division Applicant: Phil Prystash

Landing 200 Mill Charle (Late 4.0.2) Williams (Dis

Location: 306 Mill Street (Lots 1 & 2 – Village of Pinckney Original Plat)

Request: Schedule Public Hearing - split lots 1 & 2

Village of Pinckney Regular Planning Commission Meeting June 3, 2024 Page 3

ZA Durkin stated that a public hearing is required prior to a lot division. We simply need to schedule that hearing for the July 1<sup>st</sup> meeting.

Motion by Kinczkowski, supported by Wagner

To schedule a public hearing for July 1, 2024 for consideration of a lot division at 306 Mill Street

VOTE: Ayes: 7 Nays: 0 Absent: 0 MOTION CARRIED

3. Annual Report to Council

ZA Durkin stated that according to the bylaws, the Commission shall provide an annual report to Council. Included in the packet is a re-cap of the past year's activities of the Planning Commission. She is looking for any changes, additions or deletions prior to sending it to Council.

It was stated that the report shows that a lot has been accomplished this past year. Member Hartman noted that his term of office should reflect term ending 2027.

Motion by Hartman, supported by Grischke

To approve the Annual Report to Council with the change to reflect Member Hartman's correct term of office and request that it be forwarded to Village Council

VOTE: Ayes: 7 Nays: 0 Absent: 0 MOTION CARRIED

4. Request by Council to revisit Temporary Sign Ordinance

ZA Durkin stated that at their last meeting, Council requested that the Planning Commission review the temporary sign ordinance that was adopted last year. This was a result of some controversy, Facebook postings, etc. complaining about the required removal of the temporary signs in front of Pinckney-Chrysler and Pinckney Car Wash. Council has asked that the commission further review the ordinance to see if there is some way to allow those signs. We need to keep in mind that we can only regulate per district, not by content, or by specific properties. She stated that she has provided some points to consider as well as ordinances from various communities in Michigan.

Member Grischke stated that she understands that the business owner was granted permission for a temporary sign for 90 days back in 2007/2008. They chose not to remove the signs after the 90 days and the signs have remained. ZA Durkin stated that the ordinance was not enforced. Grischke stated that they also did not abide by the ordinance and permit.

The question was asked if these could be grandfathered. Durkin stated that there are two issues. They have been in violation of the ordinance since the 90 days expired, and it is a temporary sign, moveable, not attached to the ground, etc. You cannot grandfather something that is temporary in nature. The question was asked if they could make them permanent. Durkin stated that if they were made permanent, then they would have to meet the permanent ground sign conditions. In this case, the Car Wash does not have any ground signage, therefore they could add a permanent ground sign that meets the ordinance. Pinckney-Chrysler has already exceeded their allowable ground signage. They could ask for a variance for the additional square footage if they met the hardship criteria.

Discussion was held on these signs being "temporary" in which case we would need to require a permit, establish the number of days allowed, number of times per year, etc.

Discussion was held on the amount of additional square footage that would be required to accommodate these signs. ZA stated that our ordinance requires a maximum of 50 square feet for permanent ground signs. The signs we are talking about are 56 square feet so if they are allowed, it would be more than double the current allowable ground signage. The other issues with these signs are that they are back-lit, illuminated, etc. which are all prohibited for temporary signs. You also need to keep in mind, that you would have to allow every business within that district to have the same rights.

Member Wagner stated that she is not in favor of violation in perpetuity. We can all agree that the aesthetics in Pinckney needs to be uplifted and these signs may not be the way to do it. Member Smith stated that they have been there a long time. He would like to see some type of variance. Member Kinczkowski stated that they do not meet the criteria for a variance. He further stated that it has been said that we should consider this because they have given a lot to the community. He asked what do we say to the small business owner who wants to do the same who may not be able to give back to the community or haven't been around long enough? What does that say to other businesses? Are we going to say that if you don't donate to the Village, you can't have your way? We are creating rules special for individuals. If we allow more signage, then we allow everyone more signage.

Member Hartman asked if we could develop the Village gateway sign to accommodate miscellaneous messages, etc. as a DDA initiative. Discussion was held on a community billboard with various announcements. Discussion was held on the location for visibility. It was stated that it could be something similar to what is in front of the schools. However, this is a separate issue.

Discussion was held on the Commission's attempt to make the temporary sign ordinance less restrictive. It was stated that previously there were no temporary signs allowed. The ordinance was developed with the intent of what is best for the majority of people, and it makes sense. We cannot play favoritism and say it is okay to break the rules sometimes. The ordinances are designed to be enforced. If not, it diminishes what has been done.

ZA Durkin stated that although this has been good discussion, we do not have a clear direction. We can table this and talk about it again in July, we can suggest changes if we can come up with a determination or you can send it back to Council and indicate that you stand on the ordinance as presented. They have the ability to make changes.

Motion by Hartman, supported by Wagner

To table discussion of the temporary sign ordinance until the next meeting

ROLL CALL VOTE: Gee – Yes

Grischke - Yes Hartman - Yes Kinczkowski - No Smith - Yes Wagner - Yes

Oliver – Yes

MOTION CARRIED

## **PUBLIC FORUM:**

Chairperson Oliver opened the public forum at 7:31 p.m.

Village of Pinckney Regular Planning Commission Meeting June 3, 2024 Page 5

Mr. Frank Collins stated that he finds it hard to believe that these two businesses that have been viable for 25 years cannot build a new sign that complies with the ordinance. He further discussed the difficulty in grandfathering issues. We have an ordinance. Do the right thing and enforce the ordinance. Although he can appreciate some of the comments that have been made, he objects to the ulterior motives to grandfather these signs.

Hearing no further comments. the forum was closed at 7:33 p.m.

## **MEMBER DISCUSSION:**

Member Smith asked about the presentations that have been made regarding the gas station and fast-food proposals and asked if there is confidence in the proposal. Durkin stated that the applicant is adamant on moving forward with all three uses on that property, but we do have some concerns.

## **ADJOURNMENT:**

	Motion by Hartman, supported by Grischke				
	To adjourn the regular Planning Commission meeting at 7:34 p.m.				
VOTE:	Ayes: 6	Nays: 0	Absent: 1		MOTION CARRIED
Respec	tfully submitted	l,			
Christine Oliver, Chairperson				Julie Durkin, Z	Zoning Administrator